

NEWS FROM: The Democratic National Committee
2600 Virginia Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20037
202-333-8750

Release for Tuesday PMs
October 1, 1968

For Further Information:
Ev Munsey, ext. 201
DC-542

DIVISIVE, INFLAMMATORY CAMPAIGNS THREATEN BROAD-SCALE CIVIL DISORDER,
VICE PRESIDENT HUMPHREY WARNS

Nashville, Tenn., October 1 -- George Wallace's "calculated campaign to divide this nation, to deliberately inflame the fears, frustrations and prejudices of our people" threatens "to bring this nation to the brink of broad scale civil disorder," Vice President Hubert H. Humphrey said today.

"And these are tactics also found in the campaign of my Republican opponent -- a man who deliberately courted the most radical extremist elements in his own party -- who continues this appeal in his speeches -- and who will be fully in their debt should he win the Presidency," Humphrey said in a speech at Memorial Square.

Humphrey said that when Wallace was governor of Alabama, "he gave the people quite a demonstration of law and order.

"He decided which courts suited him -- and he disobeyed the rest.

"He decided which judges he liked -- and he insulted the others.

"He decided which laws he preferred -- and he tried to violate the others."

Noting that law enforcement is a state and local responsibility, Humphrey pointed out that "Mr. Wallace was governor of the state with the highest murder rate in the nation. He could not maintain order in his own state where he had the power -- but now he promises to maintain order in every city and state where he will not have the power."

If division and hatred are fanned, a "patented Republican-style recession" could trigger an explosion, Humphrey said.

In contrast, he said a Humphrey-Muskie Administration would offer continued prosperity and creative social programs.

His text is attached.

. . . . more

REMARKS OF
VICE PRESIDENT HUBERT H. HUMPHREY
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 1968

I want you to know that I sent my best advanceman into Nashville last week to warm things up a little for me. Her name is Muriel Humphrey.

And I want to thank all the people of Tennessee and Governor and Mrs. Ellington for the wonderful reception you gave her.

Let me say something else about my wife: I'm proud of her.

When she was in Nashville, she held an on-the-record press conference -- she does it everywhere she goes -- and it wasn't just about flowers and sewing. She answers tough questions about everything from Vietnam to the state of the economy, and answers directly.

One can only compare her courage to Mr. Nixon's lack of it and his refusal to face the American people in debate. The American people aren't going to buy brand x in 1968 -- I think it's time to strip off the wrapper and see what's underneath.

I had a lot of advice before I started this trip.

People told me: "That's Wallace country ... and if it's not Wallace country, it's Nixon country."

Then they ran for cover.

Well, friends, I call it American country. And I am running for the Presidency of the United States -- all of it.

When the American people go to the polls in November, they will have to decide two great questions:

Which party -- which candidate for President -- can most surely guide this nation down pathways of peace?

Monday night I spoke to the Nation about peace -- peace in Vietnam -- peace in the world.

I believe we can achieve an honorable peace in Vietnam -- and this will be the first priority of a Humphrey-Muskie Administration if this tragic war is still being fought when I assume office.

PAGE TWO

I've spoken of how I believe this peace can be achieved. Now I think the American people deserve equal candor from Mr. Nixon.

* * *

The second great decision of this election relates to the kind of America ...the kind of society ... we will have for ourselves and -- more importantly -- for our sons and daughters, our grandsons and granddaughters.

I've come to the South to talk about this issue -- forthrightly -- openly, and I hope, responsibly.

For this is the time to speak harsh truths -- not because they are popular -- but because the price of silence may be the end of our system of government as we know it -- our ideals of a free society -- and of liberty itself.

There are forces abroad in this land striving to divide and embitter our people -- radical extremists of the right and the left -- demagogues who preach fear and hate and division.

I've seen and I've heard extremists who chant and disrupt meetings and seek to deny freedom of speech to persons with whom they disagree.

Disorder is not dissent. Indeed, disorder, especially organized disorder, is the enemy of dissent.

Destruction is not debate. Indeed, the violence of destruction can only silence the vitality of debate.

I reject these extremists and I call upon the American people to reject them.

There is another form of radical extremism -- just as dangerous, just as corrosive to our liberties -- the extremism of those who preach disrespect for our courts -- for certain laws -- who play to the basest fears and deepest suspicions of our people.

PAGE THREE

Mark my words carefully: This strategy of organized hate -- if left unanswered and unchecked -- can lead America to disaster -- just as surely as the radical tactics of the shouters and disrupters.

The former Governor of Alabama says he is running on a platform of law and order.

When he was Governor of Alabama, he gave the American people quite a demonstration of law and order.

He decided which courts suited him -- and he disobeyed the rest.

He decided which judges he liked -- and he insulted the others.

He decided which laws he preferred -- and he tried to violate the others.

Now he proposes teaching the Wallace method to the whole country.

In America the business of law enforcement rests with state and local authorities -- not with the Federal Government.

Mr. Wallace was Governor of the State with the highest murder rate in the Nation. He could not maintain order in his own state ... where he had the power -- but now he promises to maintain order in every city and state where he will not have the power.

When I was Mayor of Minneapolis, I had the same chance to do something about law and order.

I cleaned up a police department -- I fought organized crime and street violence -- and I brought law and order to Minneapolis. As mayor, I compiled a record which received commendation from the F.B.I.

And I'm ready to do the same thing as President. I'm ready to ~~support~~ our state and local police -- I'm ready to give them the help they desperately need to stop crime and lawlessness.

PAGE FOUR

I say the job can be done -- and I intend to do it -- not with slogans and bumper stickers -- but with training, equipment, better salaries, and a coordinated attack among federal, state and local authorities.

Governor Wallace's exploits in Alabama did not end with the collapse of law and order. For someone who calls himself a friend of the little man -- a friend of the workingman, Mr. Wallace did some peculiar things as Governor.

-- Alabama housewives pay the highest sales tax in the country -- six cents on the dollar;

-- Wages for the workingmen in Alabama were the third lowest in the Nation;

-- In education, there are only two states that spend less per pupil than Alabama;

-- It has one of the lowest workmen's compensation systems of any state in the union.

And these are the accomplishments -- this is the record -- Mr. Wallace wants to bring to Washington.

I'll say this: If I were a citizen of Alabama -- and if I worked on a payroll in Alabama -- I'd surely do everything I could to keep Mr. Wallace out of Montgomery ... and certainly, out of Washington.

But these are only the most immediate dangers associated with the Wallace candidacy.

The more serious threat arises from his calculated campaign to divide this Nation -- to deliberately inflame the fears, frustrations and prejudices of our people -- to bring this Nation to the brink of broad scale civil disorder.

And these are tactics also found in the campaign of my Republican opponent -- a man who deliberately courted the most

PAGE FIVE

radical extremist elements in his own party -- who continues this appeal in his speeches -- and who will be fully in their debt should he win the Presidency.

Attacks on our courts -- vilification of our law enforcement officials -- setting group against group and race against race -- these tactics have stockpiled the ingredients for civil explosion.

The trigger of these powerful forces is likely to be one of the patented Republican-style recessions of the 1950's. Remember? They occurred about every two years.

If we returned to the almost 7 percent unemployment of 1961 -- just about double the present rate of 3.5% -- this Nation could be overwhelmed by a torrent of fear, violence and repression.

* * *

The Humphrey-Muskie Administration offers another way. We know how to maintain our present prosperity -- just look at the record -- 90 months of uninterrupted economic growth.

We believe that education -- health care -- job training -- medicare -- social security -- should be strengthened. And we have offered specific programs to accomplish these objectives.

We believe that America is strong enough -- prosperous enough -- and smart enough -- to do these things. And we say that the alternative of not doing them is rising tension and the growing threat of chaos and disorder.

Just remember -- and remember well -- the Democratic Party, and only the Democratic Party, has fought these battles and won these benefits for all Americans.

A defeat for the Democrats this Fall will be a defeat for you... for your family ... and for your future.

PAGE SIX

I appeal to you -- the silent majority of Americans -- to voice your belief in the decency of our Democracy.

We have faced grave crises before -- and we have transformed chaos into creation.

I do believe the American people can do so again -- and I mean to call them to this task.

I have come back here to ask your help.

#

1-2-44

H H H

10/1

RALLY, MEMORIAL SQUARE -- NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE
 Tuesday, October 1, 1968

VICE PRESIDENT HUMPHREY: Thank you very much. Thank you. Thank you. Governor Ellington. Thank you, Governor. What a wonderful, wonderful Democratic day this is. The sun is shining in the State of Andrew Jackson, Estes Kefauver, Cordell Hull, Buford Ellington, Senator Albert Gore, Governor Brown, Governor Clements, and thousands and thousands of Democrats. That is the kind of a state I like.

And Mayor Briley, I commend you on this wonderful city of yours and the great work that you are doing here in the development of this magnificent, historical, and yet modern city of Nashville.

Ladies and gentlemen, I feel good today. I just read in the paper this morning that there is a possibility that Mr. Nixon might join me in debate somewhere along the line. (Applause) But the way it read, it said in the beginning, there is a Republican team that has come to Nashville. And I said you know, I bet that is the vanguard for the Republican nominee. And then the paragraph, the second paragraph -- oh, it broke my heart. The second paragraph said it is the Republican Truth Squad and I knew that Mr. Nixon couldn't be in that. (Applause)

Well, my friends, I sent my "truth squad" in here about a week ago, just a one-lady truth squad. I had Mrs. Humphrey here.

I want to thank Governor and Mrs. Ellington, I want to thank all the good people of Nashville and the State of Tennessee for their graciousness, their kindness, their hospitality to my Muriel, Mrs. Humphrey. She is my secret weapon, I always say. If you have a little doubt about me, don't worry, she will make a great First Lady, and the only way you can get her is to make me the First Man. (Applause)

But I thought maybe that I would entice the leader of the Republican Party to come out from the shadows, come from under that Madison Avenue confetti parades that he has, and come out and talk, stand up like a man and face the audiences and speak to the issues. Because I told Muriel, Mrs. Humphrey, I said when you go to Nashville, now, you set an example, maybe you can flush him out, I can't. You stand there, you answer the tough questions, you hold a press conference, you talk about everything from Viet Nam to the economy. You show them that two members of the Humphrey family are willing to stand up and face the tough questions.

But it didn't work. I tell you, all you can do now is compare her courage to Mr. Nixon's lack of it and his refusal to face the American people in debate. The American people aren't going to buy Brand X in 1968, even if it is advertised to TV. I think it is time to strip off the wrapper and see what's underneath. I hear about the new Nixon. Some of you knew the old Nixon. And what you have got to be thinking about is the real Nixon. That is the one that will bother you. (Applause)

You know, I have had a lot of advice about this trip. Some people said, do you think you ought to go? And I said, why not?

They said, well, that is Wallace Country.

2

(From the audience: No!)

That is what I figured. That is what I figured.

Then someone said to me, no, no, that is not Wallace Country, that is Nixon Country.

(From the audience: No, No!)

I knew that wasn't true.

Then after that, they all ran for cover. Well, my friends, I will tell you what kind of a country I think this is. It is American Country and the best country you can find. (Applause)

And I am running for the Presidency of the United States and I am running to be President of the United States, all 50 states, every one of the states in this great republic. And I am running to be President of that band over there, that Tennessee State A&I Band. (Applause) And I am running to be President of the United States and those folks over there that are carrying those signs and aren't carrying those signs, and even some that are carrying signs that I don't like. I am running for them, too.

So I want to talk to you about this American Country, because the American people are going to go to the polls in November and it is then when the voice of the people will be heard and they will help you decide two very great questions: Which party, which candidate for president can most surely guide this nation down the pathways of peace? That is question No. 1. And last night, I spoke to this nation about the hard facts of war and peace. I gave you a plan for peace in Viet Nam and I gave you a plan for peace in the world, and I would like to hear from the opposition what they have in mind.

I believe that we can achieve a honorable peace in Viet Nam and this will be the first priority of a Humphrey-Muskie Administration if this tragic war is still being fought when I assume office. I have spoken how I believe this peace can be achieved and now I repeat it. I think the American people deserve equal candor from Mr. Nixon, and I am waiting to hear what he has to say. (Applause)

Unless that was some of his speakers that I just heard a moment ago. (Applause)

Now, the second great decision of this election relates to the kind of an America, the kind of a society that we will have for ourselves, and more importantly, for our sons and our daughters, and our grandsons and our granddaughters. I have come to the South, to this great border state, to talk about this issue point blankly, openly, and responsibly. For this is the time to speak the plain harsh truths, not because they are popular but because the price of silence may represent the end of our system of government as we know it and our ideals of a free society and of liberty itself.

Now, there are forces abroad in this land striving to divide and to embitter our people. There are radical extremists of the Right and of the Left, white and black, demagogues -- demagogues, my friends, who preach fear, who preach hate and who preach division. And I have heard and I have seen these extremists who chant and

disrupt meetings and who seek to deny freedom of speech to persons with whom they disagree. And I want to make it very clear from this platform, I think that any man that seeks any office in this land, regardless of the views that he may hold, is entitled to a respectful hearing without disturbance anywhere. (Applause)

The beginning of law and order is right here where we are now. I believe in dissent and I have practiced it all my life, decent dissent, discussion, dialogue, debate, peaceful dissent, yes. But disorder, no. No disorder. (Applause)

Disorder is not dissent; indeed, disorder, especially organized disorder, is the enemy of responsible dissent and democracy. Destruction is not debate. Indeed, the violence of destruction can only silence the vitality of debate. So I reject these extremists. I want none of them and I call upon the American people to reject them outright. (Applause)

Now, there is another form of radical extremism, just as dangerous, just as corrosive to our liberties--the extremism of those who preach disrespect for our courts, for certain laws, who play on the basest fears and the deepest suspicions of our people, the extremists who hate, who hate a man because of his religion or because of his race or because of the way he spells his name. And mark my words carefully, the strategy of organized hate if left unanswered and unchecked can lead this great nation of ours to disaster just as surely as the radical tactics of the provocators and the shouters and the disrupters can lead this country to the same tragic fate. (Applause)

So let's get down to the nitty gritty now. Let's talk about it. The former governor of a great state of a great people, former Governor of Alabama says he is running on a platform of law and order. I want to talk to you about law and order. When he was governor of Alabama, he gave the American people quite a demonstration of law and order. He decided which courts suited him and he disobeyed the rest. He decided which judges he liked and he insulted the rest. He decided which laws he preferred and he tried to violate the others. Now he proposes teaching the Wallace method to the whole country. We won't take it, and let's make it clear from this audience. (Applause)

He says if he gets to be President, he says if he is President he will see to it that there is law and order. But in America, the business of law enforcement, thank goodness, the business of the police, thank goodness, rests with state and local authorities and not with the Federal Government. I can't imagine a man that believes in states rights who wants a federal police force. I don't want a federal police force. (Applause)

What a President can do is by deed, by word, by conduct to so educate and inspire the American people that they will want to observe the law. A president can go to the Congress and ask that Congress to help the mayor -- Mayor Briley here, a great mayor -- go to this Congress and help this Governor, Governor Buford Ellington, one of the great governors of this land. A president can go and do those things. But the President of the United States is not a sheriff, he is the President of the United States of America and all that that means. (Applause)

Now, Mr. Wallace was governor of the state with the highest murder

without bringing that to Washington. (Applause)

But I will say this: If I were a citizen of Alabama and if I worked on a payroll in Alabama, I would surely do everything I could to keep Mr. Wallace out of Montgomery, and certainly out of Washington -- both. (Applause)

But, my friends, this is not all. The most serious threat arises from his calibrated campaign to divide this nation, to deliberately inflame the fears, the frustrations and the prejudices of our people and to bring this nation -- and it will -- to the brink of broadscale civil disorder. And my dear friends, if this was only the problem, I wouldn't speak of it. But these are the tactics that are found in the campaign, Madison Avenue still -- perfumed, deodorized, detergentized, all shined up and polished -- of my Republican opponent.

Very definitely, a man who deliberately courted the most radical extremists elements in his own party and who continues this appeal in his speeches and who will be fully in their debt should he win the presidency -- attacks on the courts, vilification of our law enforcement officials, group against group and race against race. These tactics have stockpiled the ingredients for civil explosion.

Now, I mentioned the Truth Squad. They are here and they are listening to what I have to say. Well, I will tell you something: If they will tell the truth, we will win this election hands down, going away. That is what I can tell you now. (Applause)

I hope this Republican Truth Squad will tell you about those eight Republican years. I hope they will tell you about Mr. Nixon, who wanted to send our Armed Forces into Viet Nam 14 years ago and that his President had to tell him to shut up. (Applause)

I hope they will tell you the truth. If they do, we can all go fishing. It will be all over. We will win this election. Because what's the truth? The truth is that in those eight Republican years, you had three recessions and workers in this audience, if you will be honest with yourself, and businessmen, you know that there was unemployment in Nashville and Tennessee, you know that the rate of unemployment in this nation stood at seven percent. You know that it stands at less than 3-1/2 percent today. I hope they will tell you the truth. I hope they will tell you the truth, that the farmers lost \$3 billion in net income in those Republican years. I hope they will tell you the truth that not a thing was done for Federal aid to education. I hope they will tell you the truth, that the workers' income in those eight years only went up nine percent, and in these eight Democratic years after taxes, after the cost of living, the family income of a working family of four has gone up 32 percent. I hope they will tell you the truth. (Applause)

I hope they will tell you that the cost of that unemployment was \$175 million in lost income. I hope they will tell you a lot more truth. I hope they will tell you that when the time came for Mr. Nixon to cast a vote as the presiding officer of the Senate to make it possible to have some help for our children and our schools, on a tie vote, Mr. Nixon refused to vote and give the kids a break. I hope they will tell you.

Oh, there is a lot I want them to tell you. And I hope they will tell you something else. I hope they will tell you that during those eight years, little or nothing was done for Nashville. And I hope they will tell you the truth that Mr. Nixon, who now whistles Dixie -- let me tell you, the last Republican that ever did anything for the South was Sherman and you know what he did to it. (Applause)

I hope they will tell you the truth about this Republican candidate and his new-found affection for TVA. (Applause)

Oh, that is as phony as a \$3 bill. Let's lay it on the line. The Republican Party fought the TVA. Mr. Nixon never supported the TVA. He says he doesn't want to sell it. Of course, he doesn't want to sell it. He would rather mismanage it. (Applause)

I will say he is one step above Barry -- Goldwater, that is, I mean. But ladies and gentlemen, it is nothing short of outright hypocrisy for a man to come around and say he now loves the TVA when he spent a lifetime of public service cutting it to ribbons, slashing it, condemning it, and now he claims it for a friend.

Yes, I hope they will tell the truth. I hope they will tell the truth that during their eight years they didn't do a thing about the impoverished. I hope they will tell the truth that during their eight years with unemployment up to almost eight percent -- 7.5 percent -- they didn't have one workers program to train workers for jobs. Not one. Not one single worker in the training program.

I hope they will tell the truth that during their Administration, we had the biggest run on the gold supply that we had ever had in one year. We Democrats are accused of not being very careful about money. Well, let me tell you, those Republicans, they took the padlock off and they went to a Fifth Avenue apartment and the money just flowed out of Fort Knox -- almost \$4 billion of it in one year. I hope they will tell you the truth.

And I will tell you something else: I hope that they will tell you that under these Democratic years, these young men that I see over here and others have had a better chance for education than ever in their lives. Aid to higher education, a million young students today under college loans because of the Federal Government.

I hope they will tell you that ten million of our children, men and women have been lifted out of poverty in the last five years. And I hope they will tell you, Mr. Businessman, that in any one of the last eight Democratic years, you have made more net profit than in all of the eight Republican years put together. (Applause) Now, that is not bad.

So I have decided to tell the truth on the Truth Squad. All they need to do is to tell you the truth: A 300 percent increase in aid to education; a 300 percent increase in aid to health. I hope they will tell the old folks in Tennessee that the Republican Party fought against Medicare and that Mr. Nixon said it wouldn't work. I hope they will tell the truth, that it was Lyndon Johnson and John Kennedy and Harry Truman that made possible Medicare, too. (Applause)

And I hope they will tell the truth, what Mr. Nixon said about the

Peace Corps, the greatest thing that we have had for our country abroad, in which hundreds of thousands of our young people have served humanity. And what did Mr. Nixon call it? A haven for draft dodgers. And there isn't a draft dodger in the entire crowd and he knows it.

I hope they will tell you the truth about what Mr. Nixon said about the Nuclear Test Ban Treaty that prevents the poison of radioactive fallout from killing off our children and generations yet unborn. He called it a cruel hoax.

Yes, Mr. Nixon, if you will tell the truth, you will never get into office. (Applause)

So, ladies and gentlemen, vote your own interest. Vote for yourselves. Vote for your country. You don't want a divided country. I look across this audience and see black and white. You and I know that you cannot judge people by race, you judge them by individuals. There is some good and there is some bad. Neither one has a monopoly on either one. We need an America that works together. We need an America in which the only way you judge a person is on merit. We need an America as we never needed it before, where everybody has a chance to be a producing, self-respecting citizen. We need an America in which our cities are reborn. We need an America in which our elderly are cared for. We need an America in which every child from age four on up can have a chance for the best education that we know how to give him. We need an America, dear friends, that is unafraid. And we need an America that will lead for peace. And we need an America that is strong enough to command respect.

We need an America, my friends, that has given this nation the kind of leadership that this state represents.

When I think of Andrew Jackson -- way back, to be sure, but he represented the character of the American people -- I call to your attention the leadership of this party. In victory or in defeat, to those who are a little older, I ask you to remember Franklin Roosevelt, who really lifted his country when he said all we have to fear is fear itself. And I call your attention to that man of indomitable will and courage who they said couldn't win -- I have heard that, too -- who they said had a lousy campaign -- I have heard that, too -- who they said was the underdog, and I have heard that, too; who they said six weeks before the end of the campaign was behind in the polls, 16 percent. I have heard that, too.

But I want to tell you something. I get an inspiration out of the life and the work and the courage and the will and the scrappiness of Harry S. Truman. That is my kind of American. (Applause.)

We need an America like John Kennedy wanted it to be when he said let's get this country moving again; when he said to us, ask not what your country can do for you, ask what you can do for your country.

And we need an America like Adlai Stevenson, when he said, let's talk sense to the American people. And I have been trying to talk sense to them.

And we need an America like President Johnson, who has told this

nation what it needed in terms of its children, and its health, of its consumers, of its environment, of its cities, and of the world in which we live.

I stand before this audience today proud to be a Democrat, but prouder to be an American. And I stand before this audience today asking you but one thing: If you want a united America, if you want a country that is one nation under God, indivisible, and with liberty and justice for all, if you want it, we can get it.

I ask you to help me get it. I need your help. I ask your help and I say to you that together, together we can make this country sing. We can make this country realize its dream. We can do everything that we want to do that needs to be done, and we are not going to listen to the voices of reaction. We are not going to listen to the people that say stand still. We are not going to listen to the slick salesmen of phony goods.

We are going to listen to the truth, we are going to act on it, and we are going to be unafraid, and we are going to make this what Lincoln said it was, the last best hope of earth. So let's get on with the job.

Thank you very much.

REMARKS
VICE PRESIDENT HUBERT H. HUMPHREY

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE
October 1, 1968

Tenn. State
A + J Unit

Barclay

Mary Briley

Gov. Ellington

Rept. Security Squad
Mr. Nelson

Mr. Gore

Sen. Gore

Ross
Beas

Gov. Brown

Gov. Clement

I want you to know that I sent my best advancement

into Nashville last week to warm things up a little for me. Her name is Muriel Humphrey.

And I want to thank all the people of Tennessee and Governor and Mrs. Ellington for the wonderful reception you gave her.

Let me say something else about my wife: I'm proud of her.

When she was in Nashville, she held an on-the-record press conference -- she does it everywhere she goes -- and it wasn't just about flowers and sewing. She answers tough questions about everything from Vietnam to the state of the economy, and answers directly.

One can only compare her courage to Mr. Nixon's
lack of it and his refusal to face the American people in debate.
The American people aren't going to buy Brand X in 1968 --
I think it's time to strip off the wrapper and see what's underneath.

I had a lot of advice before I started this trip.
People told me: "That's Wallace country, ... and
if it's not Wallace country, it's Nixon country."

Then they ran for cover.
Well, friends, I call it American country. And I am
running for the Presidency of the United States -- all of it.

Ameri. Country.

When the American people go to the polls in
November, they will have to decide two great questions:
Which party -- which candidate for President -- can
most surely guide this nation down pathways of peace?

Peace
-3-

Monday night I spoke to the nation about peace --
peace in Vietnam -- peace in the world.

I believe we can achieve an honorable peace in
Vietnam -- and this will be the first priority of a Humphrey-Muskie
Administration if this tragic war is still being fought when I assume
office.

I've spoken of how I believe this peace can be
achieved. Now I think the American people deserve equal candor
from Mr. Nixon.

* * *

The second great decision of this election relates to
the kind of America ... the kind of society ... we will have for
ourselves and -- more importantly -- for our sons and daughters,
our grandsons and granddaughters.

I've come to the South to talk about this issue --
forthrightly --- openly --- and, I hope, responsibly.

↳ For this is the time to speak harsh truths -- not
because they are popular -- but because the price of silence
be the end of our system of government as we know it ... our
ideals of a free society and of liberty itself.

↳ There are forces abroad in this land striving to
divide and embitter our people -- radical extremists of the Right
and the Left -- demagogues who preach fear and hate and division.

I've seen and I've heard extremists who chant and
disrupt meetings and seek to deny freedom of speech to persons
with whom they disagree.

↳ Disorder is not dissent. Indeed, disorder, especially
organized disorder, is the enemy of dissent and democracy.

Extremists

Disorder

∠ Destruction is not debate. Indeed, the violence of destruction can only silence the vitality of debate.

∠ I reject these extremists and I call upon the American people to reject them.

There is another form of radical extremism -- just as dangerous, just as corrosive to our liberties -- the extremism of those who preach disrespect for our courts -- for certain laws -- who play to the basest fears and deepest suspicions of our people.

Hate ∠ Mark my words carefully: This strategy of organized hate -- if left unanswered and unchecked -- can lead America to disaster -- just as surely as the radical tactics of the shouters and disrupters.

∠ The former Governor of Alabama says he is running on a platform of law and order.

Wallace

- 6 -

↳ When he was Governor of Alabama, he gave the American people quite a demonstration of law and order.

↳ He decided which courts suited him -- and he disobeyed the rest.

↳ He decided which judges he liked -- and he insulted the rest.

↳ He decided which laws he preferred -- and he tried to violate the others.

↳ Now he proposes teaching the Wallace method to the whole country.

In America, the business of law enforcement rests with state and local authorities -- not with the federal government.

no Fed Rules
State Rtg

Mr. Wallace was Governor of the state with the highest murder rate in the nation. He could not maintain order in his own state ... where he had the power -- but now he promises to maintain order in every city and state where he will not have the power.

When I was Mayor of Minneapolis I had the same chance to do something about law and order.

I cleaned up a police department --- I fought organized crime and street violence --- and I brought law and order to Minneapolis. As Mayor, I compiled a record which received commendations from the FBI. And I'm ready to do the same thing as President.

I am ready to support our state and local police -- I am ready to give them the help they desperately need to stop crime and lawlessness.

Imps

Support Police

I say the job can be done.

I intend to do it -- not with slogans and bumper stickers -- but with training, equipment, better salaries, and a coordinated attack among Federal, state and local authorities. Governor Wallace's exploits in Alabama did not end with the collapse of law and order.

For someone who calls himself a friend of the little man -- a friend of the workingman, Mr. Wallace did some peculiar things as Governor:

-- Alabama housewives paid the highest sales tax in the country -- six cents on the dollar;

-- Wages for the workingman in Alabama were the third lowest in the nation;

-- In education, there are only two states that spend less per pupil than Alabama;

-- It has one of the lowest workmen's compensation systems of any state in the union.

And these are the accomplishments -- this is
the record -- Mr. Wallace wants to bring to Washington.

I'll say this: If I were a citizen of Alabama -- and if I worked on a payroll in Alabama -- I'd surely do everything I could to keep Mr. Wallace out of Montgomery ... and certainly
out of Washington.

But these are only the most immediate dangers associated with the Wallace candidacy.

The more serious threat arises from his calculated campaign to divide this nation -- to deliberately inflame the fears,
frustrations and prejudices of our people -- to bring this nation
to the brink of broad scale civil disorder.

M/12

↪ And these are tactics also found in the campaign
 of my Republican opponent -- a man who deliberately courted
the most radical extremist elements in his own party -- who
continues this appeal in his speeches -- and who will be fully
 in their debt should he win the Presidency.

↪ Attacks on our courts -- vilification of our law
enforcement officials -- setting group against group and race
against race -- these tactics have stockpiled the ingredients
for civil explosion.

Truth Squad

The trigger of these powerful forces is likely to be
 one of the patented Republican-style recessions of the 1950's.
 Remember? They occurred about every two years.

Recession

↪ If we returned to the almost 7 per cent unemployment
 of 1961 -- just about double the present rate of 3.5 per cent -- this
 nation could be overwhelmed by a torrent of fear, violence and
 repression.

TVA

↳ The Humphrey-Muskie Administration offers another way. We know how to maintain our present prosperity -- just look at the record -- ^{over} 90 months of uninterrupted economic growth.

↳ We believe that education -- health care -- job training -- Medicare -- Social Security -- should be strengthened. And we have offered specific programs to accomplish these objectives.

↳ We believe that America is strong enough -- prosperous enough -- and smart enough -- to do these things. And we say that the alternative of not doing them is rising tension and the growing threat of chaos and disorder.

↳ Just remember -- and remember well -- the Democratic Party, and only the Democratic Party, has fought these battles and won these benefits for all Americans.

A defeat for the Democrats this fall will be a defeat for you ... for your family ... and for your future.

I appeal to you -- the silent majority of Americans -- to voice your belief in the decency of our democracy.

We have faced grave crises before -- and we have transformed chaos into creation.

I do believe the American people can do so again -- and I mean to call them to this task.

I have come here to ask your help.

#

ACorrigan 810 371-1474
Marty Gleason, Jan Gay

Wed PM's

SPECIAL MESSAGE TO THE PEOPLE OF NASHVILLE

I know your real desire to maintain harmony in Nashville

Through social action programs-----such as the recent inclusion of Nashville as a Model City----you demonstrate an awareness of conditions which cause urban unrest ---- and your determination to control them. Your growing educational system also shows a real effort to bring knowledge to all who seek it.

These positive efforts indicate your belief that law and order in a city result not from attacks on our courts, our laws, or our police officials----but in ~~our~~ ^{Sound} local programs and efficient law enforcement.

As former educator ~~and~~ city mayor, I know the seriousness of your task--- and the importance of these measures. I count as real achievements of my term as mayor of Minneapolis the improvement of its school system and the ^{The extension of justice} ~~eradication~~ ^{control} of crime.

I believe firmly in the effectiveness of local planning and administration. I believe, just as firmly, that where required Federal funds should support ~~these~~ ^{These} local efforts.

This is as essential in law enforcement as in social action. Protection of life and property in a city cannot be be guaranteed without ~~an~~ an adequately trained and equipped police force. As President, I would put Federal funds behind the Nashville police force to help support their training, equipment, and salaries.

I would join you in action ---- not in words, slogans, and attacks on our courts or law enforcement officials.

And I ask you to join me ---with faith in the essential greatness of this country ---in building an America so strong and free that no one will ever be able to tear it down.

Oct
Thurs 10 am Bluefield W Va

Charlotte NC Wed pm 8.9

① Nashville

ok

② Knoxville - U Team

ok

③

④ Charlotte, N.C. —

Ted. TWXes

⑤ Bluefield W Va
Rally

+ 6 stops

DEM FOR HHH DC
ATTENTION TED VAN DYKE

ECONOMIC COMPARISONS-TENNESSEE

TENNESSEE MIRRORS THE NATIONAL EXPERIENCE: GREAT GROWTH AND PROSPERITY UNDER DEMOCRATIC ADMINISTRATIONS AND STAGNATION WITH RECESSIONS UNDER THE REPUBLICANS. THIS IS NO ACCIDENT-- THIS IS A DIRECT CONSEQUENCE OF THE DEMOCRATIC POLICIES OF ECONOMIC EXPANSION AND STABILITY AND OF REPUBLICAN NEGLECT.

WHEN JOHN F. KENNEDY SPOLKE ON SEPTEMBER 21ST, 1960, AS A SENATOR RUNNING FOR PRESIDENT AT YOUR TRI-CITY AIRPORT IN BRISTOL, HE ASKED THE QUESTION: "WHICH PARTY IS GOOD FOR THE PEOPLE?" "WHICH PARTY HAS CONCERNED ITSELF WITH EDUCATION AND THE POSITION OF OUR OLDER CITIZENS AND FULL EMPLOYMENT FOR OUR PEOPLE AND PARITY INCOME FOR OUR FARMERS?" "WHICH PARTY HAS FOUGHT FOR THE AMERICAN PEOPLE?" "WHICH PARTY HAS SAID, 'YES' TO THE FUTURE AND WHICH PARTY HAS STOOD STILL AND WHICH PARTY HAS LOOKED BACK?"

THE ANSWERS TO ALL THESE QUESTIONS ARE EVEN MORE CLEAR TODAY THAN THEY WERE EIGHT YEARS AGO. I ASK THE CITIZENS OF TENNESSEE TO COMPARE THE RECORD OF THE DEMOCRATIC ADMINISTRATIONS OF THESE RECENT YEARS WITH THE REPUBLICAN ADMINISTRATION DURING WHICH RICHARD NIXON WAS VICE PRESIDENT.

FROM 1953 TO 1960 THE TOTAL NUMBER OF JOBS IN ALL NON-AGROICULTURAL INDUSTRIES IN TENNESSEE INCREASED 73,000, ONLY 8 PERCENT. GREATLY DIFFERENT WAS THE 291,000 OR 31 PERCENT INCREASE FROM 1960 TO 1967.

ALL MEASURED IN TODAY'S (1968) PRICES, THE PERSONAL INCOME OF ALL THE PEOPLE OF TENNESSEE WENT UP FROM \$5.3 BILLION IN 1953 TO \$6.5 BILLION IN 1960. BUT FROM 1960 TO 1967 IT INCREASED TO \$9.6 BILLION, A GAIN OF \$3.2 BILLION DOLLARS OR ALMOST 50 PERCENT IN JUST SEVEN DEMOCRATIC YEARS. THE GAIN UNDER THE DEMOCRATS WAS THUS ALMOST THREE TIMES AS GREAT AS THAT UNDER THE REPUBLICANS.

REAL INCOME PER CAPITA (AGAIN ALL IN 1968 PRICES SO THAT THESE ARE REAL-DOLLARS OF REAL (UNDERLINE REAL) PURCHASING POWER) INCREASED FROM \$1,588 IN 1953 TO \$1,803 IN 1960 IN TENNESSEE, A GAIN OF ONLY \$215, OR 14%. BETWEEN 1960 AND 1967 IT INCREASED TO

\$2,478, A RISE OF \$675, OR 37%. % THIS MANS A LOT TO A TYPICAL TENNESSEE FAMILY OF FOUR. SUCH A FAMILY HAD \$2,700 MORE BUYING POWER IN 1967 THAN IT HAD AT THE END OF THE REPUBLICAN ADMINISTRATION. IN THE COMPARABLE NIXON -RUBUREPUBLICAN PERIOND THE RISE WAS ONLY \$860 FOR A TENNESSEE DFAMIOLY OF FOUR.

TENNESSEE FARMERS, PERHAPS MORE THAN ANYONE ELSE, HAVE FELT THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN DEMOCRATIC AND REPUBLICAN ADMINISTRATIONS. FROM 1953 TO 1960 NET REAL INCOME PER FARM IN THEIS STATE DECLINED (UNDERLINE DECLINED) BY 19%. IN THE DEMOCRATIC YEARS IT ROSE (UNDERLINE ROSE) BY 19%.

THERE HAS BEEN CONTRASTING PROGRESS OUTSIDE THE ECONOMIC SPHERE TOO: BETTER EDUCATION AND BETTER HEALTH PROGRAMS. THE GREAT TRAGEDY OF INFANT MORTALITY IS A KEY INDICATOR OF THE EFFECT OF HEALTH PROGRAMS. UNDER THE REPUBLICANS THERE WAS VIRTUALLY NO IMPROVEMENT AND THE INFANT MORTALITY RATE PER THOUSAND LIVE BIRTHS IN TENNESSEE WAS 30.3 IN 1953 AND 29.4 IN 1960. BUT BY 1967 IT HAD DECLINED TO 25.6. THE DEMOCRATIC IMPROVEMENT RATE WAS ALMOST FOUR TIMES THE REPUBLICAN.

IN EDUCATION, LET US LOOK AT THE NUMBER OF TWO-YAEAR COLLEGES IN TENNESSEE. DURING THE REPUBLICAN YEARS IT DECLINED (UNDERLINE) FROM 9 TO 6 BUT FR9OM THE FALL OF 1960 TO THE FALL OF 1967 THE NUMBER HAS RISEN (UNDERLINE) TO 10. IN THE VOCATIONAL AREA, FEDERAL SUPPORT FOR VOCATIONAL EDUCATION HAS ALMOST TRIPLED DURING THE DEMOCRATIC ADMINISTRATIONS. FROM SHCHOOL YEAR 1953-54 TO 1960-61 FEDERAL ASSISTANCE INCREASED ONLY \$630,000. DURING THE DEMOCRATIC PERIOD, THAT IS, FROM SCHOOL YEAR 1960-61 TO 1966-67, FEDERAL ASSISTANCE IN TENNESSEE INCREASED BY \$5,280,000.

THESE ARE JUST A SPRINKLING OF THE FACTS HTHAT WE NEED TO KNOW. TOO MANY PEOPLE FORGET THE RECORD OF THREE RECESSIONS IN THE NIXON-REPUBLICAN YEARS AS COMPARED WITH THE UNINTERRUPTED AND UNPRECEDENTED PROSPERITY THAT STARTED WHEN THE DEMOCRATS TOOK OVER IN JANUARY 1961 AND WICHICH HAS CONTINUED EVER SINCE.

THE GROWTH AND PROSPERITY UNDER THE DEMOCRATS WAS NO ACCIDENT. IT TOOK EFFORT AND IT REQUIRED THOUGHTFUL POLICIES. THE RECESSIONS AND UNEMPLOYMENT UNDER THE REPUBLICANS WAS NO ACCIDENT EITHER. IT WAS A THROWBACK TO THE COOLIDGE-HOOVER "DO NOTHING" ATTITUDE.

I REMIND YOU OF THIS RECORD BECAUSE YOUR JOBS AND YOUR INCOME AND THE EDUCATION OF YOUR CHILDREN AND THE SECURITY OF YOUR SENIOR CITIZENS ARE IMPORTANTLY AFFECTED BY THE ADMINISTRATION IN WASHINGTON. VOTE FOR HUMPHREY-MUSKIE AND YOU VOTE FOR PROSPERITY AND PROGRESS.

9/28/68

END OF ECONOMIC DATA FOR TENNESSEE - 7

HHH NASH

DEM FOR HHH DC
ATTENTION: MARTY GLEASON

OR JAN GRAY, M
SORRY, JAN GAY, MEDIA

FROM: JOHN G. STEWART

THE FOLLOWING IS TO BE RELEASED TO THE LOCAL PRESS -- AND ONLY THE LOCAL PRESS -- AFTER, REPEAT, AFTER THE VICE PRESIDENT HAS LEFT NASHVILLE. IT IS FOR WEDNESDAY PM RELEASE - NOT FOR THE NATIONAL PRESS TRAVELING WITH VP.

"SPECIAL MESSAGE TO THE PEOPLE OF NASHVILLE

I KNOW YOUR REAL DESIRE TO MAINTAIN HARMONY IN NASHVILLE.

THROUGH SOCIAL ACTION PROGRAMS -- SUCH AS THE RECENT INCLUSION OF NASHVILLE AS A MODEL CITY -- YOU DEMONSTRATE AN AWARENESS OF CONDITIONS WHICH CAUSE URBAN UNREST -- AND YOUR DETERMINATION TO CONTROL THEM. YOUR GROWING EDUCATIONAL SYSTEM ALSO SHOWS A REAL EFFORT TO BRING KNOWLEDGE TO ALL WHO SEEK IT.

THESE POSITIVE EFFORTS INDICATE YOUR BELIEF THAT LAW AND ORDER IN A CITY RESULT NOT FROM ATTACKS ON OUR COURTS, OUR LAWS, OR OUR POLICE OFFICIALS -- BUT IN SOUND LOCAL PROGRAMS AND EFFICIENT LAW ENFORCEMENT.

AS FORMER EDUCATOR AND CITY MAYOR, I KNOW THE SERIOUSNESS OF YOUR TASK -- AND THE IMPORTANCE OF THESE MEASURES. I COUNT AS REAL ACHIEVEMENTS OF MY TERM AS MAYOR OF MINNEAPOLIS THE IMPROVEMENT (IMPROVEMENT) OF ITS SCHOOL SYSTEM, THE EXTENSION OF JUSTICE AND THE CONTROL OF CRIME.

I BELIEVE FIRMLY IN THE EFFECTIVENESS OF LOCAL PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION. I BELIEVE, JUST AS FIRMLY, THAT WHERE REQUIRED, FEDERAL FUNDS SHOULD SUPPORT THESE LOCAL EFFORTS.

THIS IS AS ESSENTIAL IN LAW ENFORCEMENT AS IN SOCIAL ACTION. PROTECTION OF LIFE AND PROPERTY IN A CITY CANNOT BE GUARANTEED WITHOUT AN ADEQUATELY TRAINED AND EQUIPPED POLICE FORCE. AS PRESIDENT, I WOULD PUT FEDERAL FUNDS BEHIND THE NASHVILLE POLICE FORCE TO HELP SUPPORT THEIR TRAINING, EQUIPMENT, AND SALARIES.

I WOULD JOIN YOU IN ACTION -- NOT IN WORDS, SLOGANS, AND ATTACKS ON OUR COURTS OR LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS.

AND I ASK YOU TO JOIN ME -- WITH FAITH IN THE ESSENTIAL GREATNESS OF THIS COUNTRY -- IN BUILDING AN AMERICA SO STRONG AND FREE THAT NO ONE WILL EVER BE ABLE TO TEAR IT DOWN.

ECONOMIC COMPARISONS-TENNESSEE

TENNESSEE MIRRORS THE NATIONAL EXPERIENCE: GREAT GROWTH AND PROSPERITY UNDER DEMOCRATIC ADMINISTRATIONS AND STAGNATION WITH RECESSIONS UNDER THE REPUBLICANS. THIS IS NO ACCIDENT-- THIS IS A DIRECT CONSEQUENCE OF THE DEMOCRATIC POLICIES OF ECONOMIC EXPANSION AND STABILITY AND OF REPUBLICAN NEGLECT.

WHEN JOHN F. KENNEDY SPOKE ON SEPTEMBER 21ST, 1960, AS A SENATOR RUNNING FOR PRESIDENT AT YOUR TRI-CITY AIRPORT IN BRISTOL, HE ASKED THE QUESTION: "WHICH PARTY IS GOOD FOR THE PEOPLE?" "WHICH PARTY HAS CONCERNED ITSELF WITH EDUCATION AND THE POSITION OF OUR OLDER CITIZENS AND FULL EMPLOYMENT FOR OUR PEOPLE AND PARITY INCOME FOR OUR FARMERS?" "WHICH PARTY HAS FOUGHT FOR THE AMERICAN PEOPLE?" "WHICH PARTY HAS SAID, 'YES' TO THE FUTURE AND WHICH PARTY HAS STOOD STILL AND WHICH PARTY HAS LOOKED BACK?"

THE ANSWERS TO ALL THESE QUESTIONS ARE EVEN MORE CLEAR TODAY THAN THEY WERE EIGHT YEARS AGO. I ASK THE CITIZENS OF TENNESSEE TO COMPARE THE RECORD OF THE DEMOCRATIC ADMINISTRATIONS OF THESE RECENT YEARS WITH THE REPUBLICAN ADMINISTRATION DURING WHICH RICHARD NIXON WAS VICE PRESIDENT.

FROM 1953 TO 1960 THE TOTAL NUMBER OF JOBS IN ALL NON-AGRO-CULTURAL INDUSTRIES IN TENNESSEE INCREASED 73,000, ONLY 8 PERCENT. GREATLY DIFFERENT WAS THE 291,000 OR 31 PERCENT INCREASE FROM 1960 TO 1967.

ALL MEASURED IN TODAY'S (1968) PRICES, THE PERSONAL INCOME OF ALL THE PEOPLE OF TENNESSEE WENT UP FROM \$5.3 BILLION IN 1953 TO \$6.5 BILLION IN 1960. BUT FROM 1960 TO 1967 IT INCREASED TO \$9.6 BILLION, A GAIN OF \$3.2 BILLION DOLLARS OR ALMOST 50 PERCENT IN JUST SEVEN DEMOCRATIC YEARS. THE GAIN UNDER THE DEMOCRATS WAS THUS ALMOST THREE TIMES AS GREAT AS THAT UNDER THE REPUBLICANS.

REAL INCOME PER CAPITA (AGAIN ALL IN 1968 PRICES SO THAT THESE ARE DOLLARS OF REAL (UNDERLINE REAL) PURCHASING POWER) INCREASED FROM \$1,588 IN 1953 TO \$1,803 IN 1960 IN TENNESSEE, A GAIN OF ONLY \$215, OR 14%. BETWEEN 1960 AND 1967 IT INCREASED TO \$2,478, A RISE OF \$675, OR 37%. THIS MAKES A LOT TO A TYPICAL TENNESSEE FAMILY OF FOUR. SUCH A FAMILY HAD \$2,700 MORE BUYING POWER IN 1967 THAN IT HAD AT THE END OF THE REPUBLICAN ADMINISTRATION. IN THE COMPARABLE NIXON-REPUBLICAN PERIOD THE RISE WAS ONLY \$860 FOR A TENNESSEE FAMILY OF FOUR.

TENNESSEE FARMERS, PERHAPS MORE THAN ANYONE ELSE, HAVE FELT THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN DEMOCRATIC AND REPUBLICAN ADMINISTRATIONS. FROM 1953 TO 1960 NET REAL INCOME PER FARM IN THIS STATE DECLINED (UNDERLINE DECLINED) BY 19%. IN THE DEMOCRATIC YEARS IT ROSE (UNDERLINE ROSE) BY 19%.

THERE HAS BEEN CONTRASTING PROGRESS OUTSIDE THE ECONOMIC SPHERE TOO: BETTER EDUCATION AND BETTER HEALTH PROGRAMS. THE GREAT TRAGEDY OF INFANT MORTALITY IS A KEY INDICATOR OF THE EFFECT OF HEALTH PROGRAMS. UNDER THE REPUBLICANS THERE WAS VIRTUALLY NO IMPROVEMENT AND THE INFANT MORTALITY RATE PER THOUSAND LIVE BIRTHS IN TENNESSEE WAS 30.3 IN 1953 AND 29.4 IN 1960. BUT BY 1967 IT HAD DECLINED TO 25.6. THE DEMOCRATIC IMPROVEMENT RATE WAS ALMOST FOUR TIMES THE REPUBLICAN.

IN EDUCATION, LET US LOOK AT THE NUMBER OF TWO-YEAR COLLEGES IN TENNESSEE. DURING THE REPUBLICAN YEARS IT DECLINED (UNDERLINE) FROM 9 TO 6 BUT FROM THE FALL OF 1960 TO THE FALL OF 1967 THE NUMBER HAS RISEN (UNDERLINE) TO 10. IN THE VOCATIONAL AREA, FEDERAL SUPPORT FOR VOCATIONAL EDUCATION HAS ALMOST TRIPLED DURING THE DEMOCRATIC ADMINISTRATIONS. FROM SCHOOL YEAR 1953-54 TO 1960-61 FEDERAL ASSISTANCE INCREASED ONLY \$630,000. DURING THE DEMOCRATIC PERIOD, THAT IS, FROM SCHOOL YEAR 1960-61 TO 1966-67, FEDERAL ASSISTANCE IN TENNESSEE INCREASED BY \$5,280,000.

THESE ARE JUST A SPRINKLING OF THE FACTS THAT WE NEED TO KNOW. TOO MANY PEOPLE FORGET THE RECORD OF THREE RECESSIONS IN THE NIXON-REPUBLICAN YEARS AS COMPARED WITH THE UNINTERRUPTED AND UNPRECEDENTED PROSPERITY THAT STARTED WHEN THE DEMOCRATS TOOK OVER IN JANUARY 1961 AND WHICH HAS CONTINUED EVER SINCE.

THE GROWTH AND PROSPERITY UNDER THE DEMOCRATS WAS NO ACCIDENT.

THE GROWTH AND PROSPERITY UNDER THE DEMOCRATS WAS NO ACCIDENT.
IT TOOK EFFORT AND IT REQUIRED THOUGHTFUL POLICIES. THE RECESSIONS
AND UNEMPLOYMENT UNDER THE REPUBLICANS WAS NO ACCIDENT EITHER.
IT WAS A THROWBACK TO THE COOLIDGE-HOOVER "DO NOTHING" ATTITUDE.

I REMIND YOU OF THIS RECORD BECAUSE YOUR JOBS AND YOUR
INCOME AND THE EDUCATION OF YOUR CHILDREN AND THE SECURITY OF
YOUR SENIOR CITIZENS ARE IMPORTANTLY AFFECTED BY THE
ADMINISTRATION IN WASHINGTON. VOTE FOR HUMPHREY-MUSKIE AND YOU
VOTE FOR PROSPERITY AND PROGRESS.

9/28/68

END OF ECONOMIC DATA FOR TENNESSEE

Nashville

~~Memphis~~

~~Part of the secret of successful campaigning is good advance men.~~

I want you to know that I sent
And I sent my best one ^{advance man} man into Nashville

last week to warm things up a little for me. Her Name is Muriel Humphrey.

And I want to thank all the people of Tennessee and Governor and Mrs. Ellington for the wonderful reception you gave her.

Let me say something else about my wife: I'm proud of her. When she was in Nashville she held an on-the-record press conference--she does it every where she goes--and it wasn't just about flowers and sewing. She answers tough questions about everything from Veitnam to the state of the economy, and answers ~~straight~~ directly.

One can only compare her courage to Mr. Nixon's ^{look of it} and his refusal to face the American people in debate.
~~I wish Mr. Nixon were as forthright about where he stands, not when he was in front of the American people~~

~~I It's time to get those debates organized, Mr. Nixon.~~

The American people aren't going to buy Brand X in 1968 -- I think it's time to strip off the wrapper and see what's underneath.

I had a lot of advice before ~~coming to~~ ~~Kentucky~~ Kentucky
I started this trip to ~~Kentucky~~ Kentucky and to some other states ^{farther south} farther south. *People told me* Most of it added up to "don't go."

"That's ~~Nixon~~ Wallace country, they said," and if it's not Wallace country, it's Nixon country *"I forgot."*
(Then they ran for Cover.)

workload of anyone passing up
And who ~~could pass up~~ an invitation to visit Nashville?

~~XXXXXXXXXX~~ Well, friends, I call it American country. And I

am running for the Presidency of the United States--all of it.

~~And so I wouldn't ever pass up a chance to visit Nashville.~~

Follows
is "So let them
fight" - to
be used
as indicated
with in
the covered
speeches
in southern
swing.)

When the American people go to the polls in November, they

will have to decide two great questions:

Which Party--which candidate for President--can most surely

guide this nation down pathways ~~xxx~~ of peace?

Monday night

Last night I spoke to the nation about peace--peace in Vietnam--

peace in the world.

I believe we can achieve an honorable peace in Vietnam--and

this will be the first priority of a Humphrey-Nuskie Administration

if this tragic war is ~~xxxx~~ still being fought when I assume office.

I've spoken of how I believe this peace can be achieved--~~Now I~~

think the American people ~~xxxxxx~~ deserve equal candor from Mr. Nixon.

I think it's time for the candidates to debate these major issues before the jury of the American people. I'm ready. . .Mr. Nixon says he is. . . and then he says he isn't.

When is he going to start leveling with the American people-- when is The Shadow going to step out in the sunlight?

* * * *

The second great decision of this election relates to the

kind of America--the kind of society--we will have for ourselves and--

more importantly--for our sons and daughters, our grandsons and granddaughters.

I've come to the South to talk about this issue,--forthrightly--
 openly--and, I hope, responsibly. ^{For this} ~~This~~ is the time ~~for~~ to speak
 harsh truths--~~even unpopular truths~~ not because they are popular--
 but because the price of silence may be ~~be~~ the end of our system
 of government as we know it--our ideals ~~of~~ of a free society--and of
 liberty itself.

There are forces abroad in this land striving to divide and
 --radical
 embitter our people--~~extremists~~ of the right and the left--demagogues
 who preach fear and hate and division.

and I've heard extremists
 I've seen ~~the people~~ who chant and ~~the extremists~~ disrupt meetings
 and seek to ~~deny~~ ^{deny} the freedom of speech ^{to} ~~for~~ persons with whom they
 disagree.

~~I reject this tyranny of majority~~
 Disorder is not dissent. Indeed, disorder, especially organized
 disorder, is the enemy of dissent.

Destruction is not debate. Indeed, the ~~the~~ violence of
 destruction can only silence the vitality of debate.

I reject these extremists and I call upon the American people
 to reject them.

~~And there~~ ^{another form of} there is ~~the~~ radical extremism -- just as dangerous,
 just as corrosive to our liberties--^{the extremism} of those who preach disrespect for
 our courts--for certain laws--who play to ^{basest} the fears and ^{deepest suspicions} ~~suspicions~~
 of our people.

Mark my words carefully: ~~this~~ ^{this strategy of organized hate} ~~is~~ ^{of division} ~~is~~ if left unanswered

[Handwritten scribbles on the left margin]

and unchecked--can ~~bring~~ ^{lead America to} disaster ~~to the United States~~ ~~xxxx~~ just

as surely as the radical tactics of the shouters, ^{and} disrupters, ~~and~~

~~The confederate trait is a harbinger for a democracy~~
~~the voters~~

^{Says he}
The former governor of Alabama is running on a platform of law

and order.

When he was ~~governor~~ ^{governor} of Alabama ~~he gave the American people quite a~~
demonstration of law and order. ~~We saw the final act on television.~~

He decided which courts suited him--and he disobeyed the rest.

He decided which judges he liked--and he insulted the others.

He decided which laws he preferred--and he tried to ~~break~~ ^{violate} the

others.

Now he ~~proposes~~ proposes teaching the Wallace Method to the whole country.

In America the business of law enforcement rests with state and ~~local~~
local authorities--not with the federal government.

Mr. Wallace was governor of the state with the ~~Most ironically, the former governor of Alabama~~
highest murder rate in the nation. He could not maintain order in his own state. . . where he had the power--but now he promises to maintain order in every city and state where he will not have the power.

But his exploits did not end with the collapse of law and order

^{Someone who calls himself}
in Alabama. For ~~for~~ a friend of the little man--~~for~~ a friend of the working-man, Mr. Wallace ~~conducted his administration in peculiar ways!~~ ^{made some peculiar things as governor!}

--Alabama housewives pay the highest sales tax in the country--six cents on the dollar;

--wages for the ~~MEM~~ workingmen in Alabama were the third lowest in the nation;

--in education, there are only two states that spend less per pupil than Alabama;

--it has the lowest workmen's compensation ^{one of} of any state in ^{systems} the union.

And these are the accomplishments--~~these~~ this is the record-- Mr. Wallace wants to bring to Washington. ~~But~~ I'll say this: if I

~~MEM~~ were a citizen of Alabama--and if I worked on a payroll in Alabama-- I'd do everything ^{surely} in my ^{I could} power to keep him out of Montgomery. ^{and originally}

~~out of Washington~~

But these are only the most immediate dangers of Mr. Wallace.

~~lies~~
The real danger ~~is~~ in his failure to understand why America must ~~move forward~~

move forward--~~just~~ just as Richard Nixon ~~fails to understand~~

~~understands this~~ is unable to understand these things.

The radical extremists who spread fear and hate and division in America--and Mr. Nixon owes his nomination to Strom Thurmond, a specialist in these pursuits--have brought ~~America~~ this country to ~~the edge of disaster~~ the edge of disaster.

Attacks on the courts--attacks on law enforcement officials-- ~~expanding~~ overt appeals to racism--stirring up the darkest passions of our people: these tactics have stock-piled the ingredients for a great social explosion.

The trigger of this ~~explosion~~ explosion is likely to be one of the

5/A

But these are only the most immediate dangers associated with the Wallace candidacy.

The ~~more~~ more serious threat arises from his calculated campaign to divide this nation - to ~~deliberately~~ deliberately inflame the prejudices of our people - to ~~bring~~ bring this nation to the ~~brink~~ brink of broad scale civil disorder.

And these are tactics also found in the campaign of my Republican opponent ^a ~~the most~~ the most radical extremist elements in his own party ^{also} continues ~~to~~ this appeal in his speeches -- ^{who} and ^{who} will be fully in their debt should ~~he~~ he win the Presidency.

Attacks on our courts -- ~~vilification~~ vilification of our law enforcement officials -- setting group against group and race against race -- these tactics have stockpiled the ingredients for civil explosion.

The trigger of these powerful forces is likely to be one of the

Recessions

patented Republican-style of the 1950's. Remember? They occurred about ~~Republican recessions like we had every two years during the 1950's~~ every two years.

~~Double the rate of unemployment~~ ^{current} ~~unemployment~~

If we returned to the almost 7 percent unemployment of 1961--~~almost~~

just about double the present rate of 3.5 percent--~~the effect would~~ *this nation could be overwhelmed by a torrent of fear, violence and repression. be catastrophic.*

* * * *

We know how to maintain our present prosperity--just look at the ^{record.} The Humphrey-Muskie Administration offer another way. / *90 months of uninterrupted economic growth.*

We believe that education--health care--job training--Medicare--

social security--should be strengthened. And we have offered specific programs to accomplish these objectives.

Just remember--and remember well--the Democratic Party, and only the Democratic Party, has fought these battles and won these ~~xx~~ benefits for all Americans.

A defeat for the Democrats this fall will be a defeat for ~~xxxx~~ you. . . for your family. . . and for your future.

Just remember--and remember well--the Democratic Party is the party that cares about you.

I appeal to you--the silent majority of Americans--to voice your belief in the decency of our democracy.

We ~~xxx~~ have faced grave crises before--and we have transformed chaos into creation.

I do believe the American people can do so again--and I mean to call them to this task.

I have come to ^{here} ~~Nashville~~ to ask your help.

We believe that America is strong enough--strong enough--to do these things. And not say that the alternative of not doing them is rising tension and the growing threat of chaos and disorder.



Minnesota Historical Society

Copyright in this digital version belongs to the Minnesota Historical Society and its content may not be copied without the copyright holder's express written permission. Users may print, download, link to, or email content, however, for individual use.

To request permission for commercial or educational use, please contact the Minnesota Historical Society.



www.mnhs.org